
 
 
 
 

INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBER AND OFFICER DELEGATED DECISIONS 
 

THURSDAY, 24 JUNE 2010 
 
 
 
Please find enclosed Decision Notices in connection with the following: 
 
 
 
 Individual Cabinet Member Decisions:-  
 
1. Amendment to the Scheme of Delegation - Potential Allotment Sites (Pages 1 - 5) 
 
2. Land at Kellet Road, Carnforth (Pages 6 - 10) 
 
Please note that these are subject to call-in. 
 
 
 
Queries regarding these documents 
 
Please contact Tom Silvani - Democratic Services, Telephone 01524 582132 or e-mail 
tsilvani@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 
 
Gillian Noall, 
Head of Democratic Services, 
Town Hall, 
Dalton Square, 
Lancaster LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Thursday, 24 June 2010 

 



 
 

EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR DELEGATED OFFICER 
NOTICE OF DECISION  

 
THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER AND CONTACT OFFICER 

TITLE OF DECISION: 
AMENDMENT TO THE SCHEME OF DELEGATION – POTENTIAL ALLOTMENT SITES 

NAME OF DECISION TAKER: COUNCILLOR STUART LANGHORN 
POSITION AND 
RESPONSIBILITY HELD: 

CABINET MEMBER WITH RESPONSIBILITY FOR PROPERTY 

CONTACT OFFICER: ANN WOOD 

TELEPHONE: 582506 
E-MAIL: awood@lancaster.gov.uk 
Details of Decision: 
 
(1) That the Scheme of Delegation be amended to authorise the Head of Property to grant 

leases of land for potential new allotment sites in the control of other services (provided that 
such land would not be capable of achieving a market rent exceeding £6000 p.a. for 
alternative use), subject to the approval of the managing service as set out in this report. 

 
(2) That the amendment to the Scheme of Delegation be reported to Council in accordance with 

Rule 1.4 of the Cabinet Procedure Rules  
 
Reasons for the decision (continue on separate sheet or append relevant papers as necessary): 
 
The decision will allow the City Council to have a co-ordinated approach to the requests received 
and aid in the facilitation of the provision of useful community resources which promotes health 
and well being and helps to meet the demand for the provision of allotments in the District.  
 
Is the decision URGENT Yes/NO Please delete as appropriate and give reasons for urgency 
below: 
No 

I CONFIRM THAT I HAVE BEEN CONSULTED ON THE ABOVE DECISION AND THAT IT IS URGENT AND 
REASONABLE IN ALL THE CIRCUMSTANCES. (IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 17 OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

PROCEDURE RULES) 
SIGNATURE OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN: N/A 

I confirm that I have taken account of the options proposed by officers, the various 
implications set out in the report and the comments of the Monitoring and Section 151 
Officers and am authorising the decision as set out above. 
   

SIGNATURE OF DECISION TAKER: Councillor Stuart Langhorn 
DATE: 24 June 2010 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES REF NO. 2010/6 

DATE DECISION 
TAKEN: 24 June 2010 

DATE RECEIVED BY 
DEMOCRATIC 
SERVICES: 

24 June 2010 

DATE DECISION 

PUBLISHED: 24 June 2010 
 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
(publication day + 5 
working days): 

2 July 2010 
 

 
A copy of the report considered by the decision taker should be appended to this form and 

forwarded immediately to Democratic Services on completion. 

Agenda Item 1 Page 1



 

 

Cabinet   
 

Amendment to the Scheme of Delegation - Potential 
Allotment Sites 

 
Individual Cabinet Member Decision 

June 2010 
 

Report of the Corporate Director (Regeneration)  
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To give delegated authority to the Head of Property Services to grant leases of land on sites 
to be developed as new allotment sites. 
 

Key Decision  Non-Key Decision X Referral from 
Cabinet Member  

This report is public 
 

 
 
1.0 RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
(1) That the Scheme of Delegation be amended to authorise the Head of 

Property to grant leases of land for potential new allotment sites in the 
control of other services (provided that such land would not be capable of 
achieving a market rent exceeding £6000 p.a. for alternative use), subject 
to the approval of the managing service as set out in this report. 

 
(2) That the amendment to the Scheme of Delegation be reported to Council in 

accordance with Rule 1.4 of the Cabinet Procedure Rules  
 

2.0 Introduction 
 
2.1 An increasing number of Parish Councils and similar organisations have been 

approaching the City Council to develop new community allotment sites in their area 
to meet the demand of local residents for allotment plots.  Most recently this has 
been seen at Caton where approval was obtained to grant the Parish Council a lease 
of land to the rear of 29 Fell View, Caton to develop a new allotment site.  The land in 
this instance as in many other cases is managed by Council Housing Services as 
part of the Housing Estate.   

Page 2



 
2.2 Under the current Scheme of Delegation, the Head of Property Services has 

delegated authority to manage and maintain, inclusive of lettings, the assignment and 
surrender of leases and grant of easements, all property and land not under the 
control of any other Service Head. 

 
3.0 Proposal Details 
 
3.1 Under section 23 of the Small Holdings and Allotments Act 1908, there is a statutory 

duty on parish councils to provide suitable allotment sites if they are of the opinion 
that there is a demand for such.  In considering demand, a council must take into 
account representations from six or more people.  It is anticipated that more Parish 
Councils will be approaching the City Council to help them provide the land to fulfil 
their statutory duty.  

 
3.2 Approaches may also come from Allotment Associations who may wish to extend the 

area of their existing sites in non parished areas. 
 
3.3 The proposed sites may have some potential for small housing development and 

some reference will be required to the Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment (SHLAA) process which informs the Land Use Allocations process under 
the Council’s Local Development Framework to determine the potential alternative 
uses of the land.  If an alternative use for the land is identified, then the decision will 
have to be referred to Cabinet. 

 
3.4 The terms and conditions which would be granted to the Parish Councils and similar 

organisations would be based on the Council’s new standard allotment leases, 
granted to Allotment Associations, which view allotments as an essential community 
resource with peppercorn rents payable. The capital and revenue costs associated 
with the new leasing arrangements were approved as part of budget proposals by 
Council at its meeting of 3rd March, 2010.  The purpose of the proposed delegation is 
to enable the Head of Property Services to grant such leases, (provided that such 
land would not be capable of achieving a market rent exceeding £6000 p.a. for 
alternative use), subject to consultation with the relevant Head of the Service under 
which the land is held.  

 
4.0 Details of Consultation  
 
4.1  Consultation will take place with the service who manage the land under 

consideration, as well as Community Engagement Service who may be able to 
advise on the sustainability issues surrounding the proposal.   Ward Councillors will 
be consulted regarding any proposals in their Wards.  If there is a lack of agreement 
to the proposal by the Ward Councillors, then the decision will be referred to Cabinet. 

 
5.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
5.1 Option 1 - To approve delegated authority to the Head of Property Services to grant 

leases to develop and run allotment sites, (provided that such land would not be 
capable of achieving a market rent exceeding £6000 p.a. for alternative use), in 
accordance with the new standard allotment leases, subject to the approval of the 
managing service of the land in question.  Parish Councils and similar organisations 
are identifying sites within their parish and this may be an ideal opportunity to use 
under utilised pieces of land to provide allotments where there is a particular 
demand. 

Page 3



 
5.2 Option 2 - Not to grant delegated authority to the Head of Property to grant leases as 

stated above.  This could delay the process of obtaining approval and create a more 
piecemeal approach to the various requests we are receiving.  The delegation of this 
issue will provide a coordinated approach and achieve the priorities laid out in the 
Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership’s Sustainable Community Strategy 
which the Council are committed to through the Corporate Plan.  
 

6. Officer Preferred Option and Comments 
 
6.1 Option (a) is preferred, to obtain approval to delegated authority to the Head of 

Property Services to grant a lease to a Parish Council to develop and run an 
allotment site for the reasons outlined above.   
 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
There is a relationship to the Local Strategic Partnership Sustainable Community Strategy, a 
new allotment site will provide a sustainable environmental resource for the community by 
promoting health and well being, developing food growing skills and promoting outdoor 
activities. 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc) 
 
This report is linked to the Local Strategic Partnership Sustainable Community Strategy.  
The promotion of allotments as a community resource impacts upon sustainability, health 
and community cohesion. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Council on 3rd March, 2010 approved budget changes associated with recommendations 
made by the allotments task group thus a peppercorn rent will be charged and the revenue 
income will be only £1, if demanded. 
 
Given the special provisions for granting of allotments it may be difficult to redeem such land 
if it is still in use as allotments after the initial 15 year lease period. This could mean that this 
is treated as a finance lease with the value of the land removed from the Council’s balance 
sheet. This in turn would mean any income from the lease would be classified as a capital 
receipt, however, as this income is not material the lease classification will have no wider 
impact in terms of either capital or revenue budgets. 
 
As stated in the Fell View, Caton report (April 2010) once the full terms and conditions have 
been agreed, Property Services need to liaise with Financial services so that a definitive 
lease classification can be agreed. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
Whilst this proposal is in accordance with the budget as approved by Council in March, it is 
highlighted to Members that generally the Council may need to review/revisit budget 
decision taken in previous years, in responding to the greater financial challenges now 
expected in future.  Should Cabinet agree to the proposals for delegation, it would be 
sensible to have arrangements in place for monitoring the total value of leases granted / 
rental income foregone;  this would be incorporated into existing arrangements. 

Page 4



LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Legal Services have been consulted and will prepare the appropriate documentation to 
proceed with the preferred option, if approved. 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Allotments 

Contact Officer: Ann Wood 
Telephone: Ext 2506 
E-mail: awood@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: G38 

 

Page 5



 
 

EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR DELEGATED OFFICER 
NOTICE OF DECISION  

 
THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER AND CONTACT OFFICER 

TITLE OF DECISION: 
LAND AT KELLET ROAD, CARNFORTH 

NAME OF DECISION TAKER: COUNCILLOR STUART LANGHORN 
POSITION AND 
RESPONSIBILITY HELD: 

CABINET MEMBER WITH RESPONSIBILITY FOR PROPERTY 

CONTACT OFFICER: JULIA GREENWOOD 

TELEPHONE: 582507 
E-MAIL: jgreenwood@lancaster.gov.uk 
Details of Decision: 
 
That the transfer of additional land off Kellet Road, Carnforth be approved as set out in the report. 
 
Reasons for the decision (continue on separate sheet or append relevant papers as necessary): 
 
This provides an opportunity sale for the city council and promotes partnership working with a 
private developer, which is considered good asset management practice. The advantage to this 
sale would be that there would be no additional junction created from / to Kellet Road and that 
vehicles going to the proposed Business Park would be taken off Kellet Road onto the industrial 
estate access road. 
 
Is the decision URGENT Yes/NO Please delete as appropriate and give reasons for urgency 
below: 
 
No 
 
I CONFIRM THAT I HAVE BEEN CONSULTED ON THE ABOVE DECISION AND THAT IT IS URGENT AND 
REASONABLE IN ALL THE CIRCUMSTANCES. (IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 17 OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

PROCEDURE RULES) 
SIGNATURE OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN: N/A 

I confirm that I have taken account of the options proposed by officers, the various 
implications set out in the report and the comments of the Monitoring and Section 151 
Officers and am authorising the decision as set out above. 
   

SIGNATURE OF DECISION TAKER: Councillor Stuart Langhorn 
DATE: 24 June 2010 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES REF NO. 2010/7 

DATE DECISION 
TAKEN: 24 June 2010 

DATE RECEIVED BY 
DEMOCRATIC 
SERVICES: 

24 June 2010 

DATE DECISION 
PUBLISHED: 24 June 2010 

 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
(publication day + 5 
working days): 

2 July 2010 
 

 
A copy of the report considered by the decision taker should be appended to this form and 

forwarded immediately to Democratic Services on completion. 

Agenda Item 2Page 6



Page 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	1 Amendment to the Scheme of Delegation - Potential Allotment Sites
	IC6 - Report

	2 Land at Kellet Road, Carnforth
	ICM7 - Report
	ICM7 - Appendix 6


